Uldaho Law **Digital Commons** @ **Uldaho Law**

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

9-4-2012

Bagley v. Thomason Appellant's Brief Dckt. 39069

III. STATEMENT of the CASE

i. NATURE of the CASE

This appeal, second in case **CV-2008-359**, comes from the (**Respondents**)' civil action for quiet title-real property (*Final R. Vol.1*, *p.19-28*) which resulted in (**Respondents**)' spinoff case, **CV-2009-88**, for quiet title-watershares (*Final R. Vol.3*, *p.463-469*).

Case CV-2008-359 also included (Appellants)' countercomplaint against both (Respondents) for breach of contract (Expressed Sale Contract) (Final R. Vol.4, p.823-827) (consisting of: a two (2) page sale contract/reconvey agreement (Expressed Sale Contract) for the sale of eleven and eight tenths (11.8) acres of bare land, excluding all chattel; a one (1) page reconvey security deed; and a two (2) page reconvey promissory installment note). (Appellants) also sought relief from damages resulting from the (Respondents) breach of contract, as well as, relief from (Respondents) acts of fraud, theft, libel, extortion, duress, threats, libel, and possible unjust enrichment upon the determination of the validity of the (Expressed Sale Contract) for if the court did rule the (Expressed Sale Contract) and (Reconvey Agreement-338905) was not enforceable, then the court had the discretion to rule on the (Appellants)' claims of unjust enrichment, and not before. (Final R. Vol.1, p.65-73; Final R. Vol.4, p.854, L.1-6)

As questioned by the (**Appellant**) (*Final R. Vol.3*, *p.404*, *L.5-8*; *Vol.4*, *p.840*, *L.19-20*; *p.841*, *L.1-14*) as to whether the district judges in fact authored the purported full and complete memorandums and orders, upon reviewing the inconsistencies evidenced in the records, affidavits, evidence, hearings, memorandums, final orders, violations to rules and statutes, as

disclosed herein and in the (**Appellant**)'s filings, it is believed the Justices, themselves, will more than likely 'raise a brow' as they contemplate if such notable district judges could have authored such erroneous decisions, memorandums and orders, abusing its discretion, in blatant violation and disregards of the United States Constitution and to the Rules and Statutes of the Great State of Idaho. (*Final R. Vol.3, p.404, L.1-8*)

However, due to the strict requirements in pleading fraud upon the court, the (**Appellants**) were required to evidence the fraud, **I.R.C.P. Rule 60(b)(1-6)**, in particularity. (*Final R. Vol.5, p.961, L.22-31; p.962, L.1-23; p.1037, L.3-8*)

ii. Course of Proceedings

The case commenced May 6, 2008. The (Appellant) filed a countercomplaint on May 30, 2008, which included breach of contract from an expressed sales contract (Expressed Sale Contract) and (Reconvey Agreement-338905). The (Respondents) filed a motion for summary judgment and the court granted the motion and rendered its decision on November 14, 2008. The court lacked subject matter jurisdiction, due to the recorded (Reconvey Agreement-338905) was and remains in direct violation of I.C. §55-601.

The (**Respondents**) repeatedly filed for fees and costs, untimely, based on illegal court orders and without standing, yet the court abused its discretion, knowing it lacked jurisdiction over subject matter, the (**Appellant**)'s tenacious objections, and the Idaho Supreme Court stated fees and costs were not appropriate, evidencing the court's severe abuse of discretion. (*Final R. Vol.4*, p.846; Vol.5, 953-954)

The court held a February 9, 2009 hearing and upheld its illegal court orders on March 9, 2009, knowing it lacked jurisdiction to do such and the hearing and orders violated the (**Appellants**) constitutional rights under the **14**th **Amendment-equal protection clause** (*Final R. Vol.5, p.958, 969, 988, 999, 1005*) knowing no motion or notice had been properly served, denying (**Appellants**) due process. (*Final R. Vol.4, p.718-734*)

The first appeal was taken and the Idaho Supreme Court issued its opinions on October 6, 2010, remanding the case back to the district court for further proceeding.

The court denied the (Appellants) all their motions, granted all relief to the (Respondents), including fees and costs that were untimely filed, without standing and without jurisdiction of subject matter. The district court rendered its final decisions on June 16, 2011 and further denied (Appellants) their motion for reconsideration, which the issues are now before the Idaho Supreme Court. This appeal encompasses all the court's multiple memorandums, decisions and orders.

iii. Statement of Facts

At the threshold of (**Respondents**)' case, **CV-2008-359**, the sole recorded documents (**Reconvey Agreement-338905**), self-authored by the (**Respondents**), lacked the mandatory grantee address under **I.C. §55-601** (*Final R. Vol.3, p.407-409; Vol.4 p.638-637* and *Vol.4, p.834-837*).

The court had intrinsic and extrinsic knowledge, the grantee(s) address(es) was lacking at the threshold of the case and the only legal authority the court had, with regards to the

(Respondents) claims for relief, was to dismiss the (Respondents)' case against the (Appellants), pursuant to I.C. §55-601 (Final R. Vol.3, p.407, L.10-28), I.R.C.P. Rule 12(g)(4) (Final R. Vol.3, p.408, L.1-3) and I.R.C.P. Rule 17(a) (Final R. Vol.3, p.639, L.5) knowing subject matter jurisdiction is not waivable by any party or any court and can be raised at any time (Final R. Vol.3, p.505, L.14-23).

Without subject matter jurisdiction, any and all orders, decisions and opinions rendered by the court were illegal and forever void, not merely voidable (*Final R. Vol. 3, p.408, L.4-14; Vol.3, p.506, L.14-25; p.507, L.1-20; p.585, L.12-25; p.586, L.1-5; Vol.4, p.833-837*) severely abusing the court's discretion and authority. (*Final R. Vol.3, p.586, L.15-25, p.587, L.1-3; p.607*).

However, when a rule or statute states an act, thing or event "can" "may" "might" occur, the court has the discretion to weigh the evidence, the situation and determine what will serve justice fair and equitably. **I.R.C.P. Rule 52(a)** (Final R. Vol.5, p.992, L.4-10)

Because a court does have some discretion, the court walks a fine line when asserting its discretion. If a rule or a statute, however, requires the court to act in a particular manner, for example, a statute stating an act, thing or event "must" "will" "shall" occur, the court does not have the authority or power to exercise discretion, making it mandatory for the court to follow the rules and statutes as the Legislators intended the law to mean. (Final R. Vol.5, p.968, L.27-31; p.969, L.1-10)

A court abuses its discretion when a rule or statute required the court to act in a precise manner, and the court ignored the rule and/or statute. (Final R. Vol.5, p.968, L.27-31; p.969, L.1-3) as with the violation of I.C. §55-601 which requires "the grantee's full and complete mailing address must be on..." and I.R.C.P. Rule 12(g)(4) states "...whenever ...the court lacks subject matter jurisdiction...the court shall dismiss the action..." (Idaho Supreme Court...opinion no.1, 2010, January 7, 2010) (Final R. Vol.3, p.408, L.1-3)

The court abused its discretion when the court had intrinsic and extrinsic knowledge its judgments, memorandums and decisions were contrary to the evidence in the court records, manifesting an abuse of discretion. (Final R. Vol.5, p.997, L.3-26, 998-1011)

The district court abused its discretion when it denied (**Appellants**) motion for retrial/reconsideration, knowing there had not been a full and fair trial which resulted in a correct decision or ruling, and a new trial or reconsideration cannot be denied (*Final R. Vol.5*, *p.1010-1011*) without severely denying (**Appellants**) their constitutional rights of due process and equal protection under the law.

But in all fairness, the final district judge, came into the case at a disadvantage. The first judge prematurely passed away, having a second judge help in the transition of appointing a new district judge, only to have the newly appointed district judge recuse himself, due to a conflict of interest, leaving the final judge coming to the court after the first appeal had been filed, after the evidence had been produced evidencing the (**Forge Documents**), after the notorious February 9th and March 9th, 2009 fraudulent hearings had occurred, illegal attorney fees and costs were self-

granted by a bogus court hearing and order, writs of executions were issued off the affidavit of the legal counsel, knowing the writs were in violation of Idaho Statutes and rules, the illegal writs were for a judgment of less than \$13,000, yet the confiscation of personal property, under the two writs, exceed \$375,000 in fair market value property, and was unaware the (Expressed Sale Contract) with the (Reconvey Agreement-338905) were the controlling document and not the (Forged Document).

The court granted to the (Respondents) their prayers and more, and dismissed all the (Appellants) counterclaims against the (Respondents) in full, as well as, denying the (Respondents) their constitutional rights to a fair an unbiased trial from the threshold of the case, all the while, knowing the court lacked subject matter jurisdiction.

The history of the case's memorandums, decisions and orders began with (**Appellants**) motion to strike (*Final R. Vol.1 ROA Report: 07/03/2008*) set for hearing on September 8, 2008 (*Final R. Vol.1 ROA Report: 07/14/2008*).

(**Respondents**) filed for summary judgment-quiet title (*Final R, Vol.1 ROA Report:* 08/08/2008) set for hearing on September 8, 2008.

(**Appellants**) file their objection to quiet title (*Final R, Vol.1 ROA Report: 08/25/2008* and 08/25/2008). (**Respondents**) failed to object or reply to (**Appellants**) motion to strike or rebuttal at oral argument.

On September 8, 2008 (*Final R., Vol.1, p.188-196*) the court rendered no decision on the (**Appellants**)' motion to strike, taking (**Appellants**)' motion under advisement (*Final R. Vol.1, p.188*), however, granted full relief to the (**Respondents**), issuing its decision on November 14, 2008 and using the (**Respondents**)' misrepresented legal description in the complaint (*Final R. Vol.1, p.21, L.4*: "...*Thence N.1º W.361.5 FEET*...) and not the recorded deed (*Final R. Vol.1, p.39, L.18*: "N.1º05'W.361.50 FEET...) resulting in the court deleting coordinates from the legal description. The memorandum and order (*Final R. Vol.1, p.189-198*) also granted all water and fixtures appurtenant thereto, in direct violation to the (**Expressed Sale Contract**) as well as, relying on (**Forged Documents**) (*Final R. Vol.1, p.34, L#.8*") to bury the **I.C. §55-601** defect in the recorded (**Reconvey Agreement-338905**) (*Final R. Vol.1, p.39-42*) which is void of any grantee(s) address, further granting the (**Respondents**) 80 acres not the 11.8 acres of Bare Land as the (**Expressed Sales Contract**) evidences, deliberately failing to weigh the conflicting evidence as required under **I.R.C.P. Rule 52(a)** (*Final R Vol.3 p.992, L.5-11*).

Over the course of the action, (**Respondents**) fail to serve proper and timely notice of hearings or file motions for fees and costs. The (**Respondents**) only, untimely, filed their memorandum for fees and costs on December 1, 2008, seventeen (17) days after the final judgment to quiet title (*Final R. Vol.1, ROA Report: 12/1/2008*) rendering any and all fees and costs, null and void.

(Appellants) timely file their appeal on December 22, 2008.

(Respondents) file their second motion for summary judgment, slander of title (*Final R. Vol.1, p.209-216*) though the ROA alleges a notice of hearing. (Defendants) scheduled a motion for summary judgment-slander of title on December 4, 2008, to be heard on January 26, 2009, however the (Respondents) fail to file any notice of hearing, motion or supporting brief until December 24, 2008 (*R.Vol.1, ROA Report, 12/4/2008...12/24/2008*) after the (Appellants) filed their first appeal on December 22, 2008 (*Final R. Vol.1, ROA Report: 12/22/2008*.

The District Court lost any possible jurisdiction, pending appeal.

Nevertheless, (**Respondents**) failed to file any notice of hearing. January 15, 2009, (**Respondents**) file a motion to amend complaint (*Final R. Vol.2, p.218-234*) with a hearing date set for January 26, 2009 at 10:00 a.m. At this point the court lacked not only subject matter jurisdiction due to the **I.C. §55-601** violation, but any claimed jurisdiction due to the filed notice of appeal. (*Final R. Vol.4, p.634-639*)

(Respondents)' continued to file motions for summary judgment – slander of title with supporting brief on December 24, 2008.

(**Respondents**) filed their motion to amend complaint on January 15, 2009 with a motion to shorten time, which was denied (*Final R. ROA Record*; 1/15/2009).

The ROA's also alleges a notice of hearing was claimed to be set for February 9, 2009 (Final R. Vol.1, ROA "01-05-2009...Order to shorten time (received) (Denied): Hearing

Scheduled (Motion 02/09/2009 10:00 AM), the records evidence the actual "Notice Of Hearing...Plaintiffs' Motion to Amend Complaint" was set for "Monday, January 26, 2009 at 10:00 a.m.: dated January 14, 2009, filed with the court on January 15, 2009. (Final R. Vol.2, p.233)

The records (Final R. Vol.2, p.235-237) allege an "Amended Notice of Hearing, filed on "January 20, 2009" for "Plaintiffs' Motion to Amend Complaint" set for "February 9, 2009 at 10:00 a.m.", with a bogus certificate of hearing alleging notice was sent to (Appellants) on January 16, 2009, (Final R. Vol.2, p.236-237) with a proposed order to shorten time to "Monday, January 26, 2009, at 10:00 a.m.; Recorder's Transcript "March 9, 2009" hearing on motion to amend complaint, (Final R. Vol.4, p.718-729) evidences otherwise:

Vol.4, p.722, L.20-25: MR. S...:We all showed up for a hearing on January 26th. ... you ...were in Salmon...a trial went long...Well, February 9th was exactly two weeks after January 26th.

Vol.4, p.723, L.10-18: Had I even wanted to send her notice ...it would have been later than 14 days...I sent her a copy of Notice of Hearing simply as a courtesy ... I don't disagree with her assertion that I sent my notice, when is it, like February 2nd..."

Vol.4, p.724, L.1-4: "...the only reason she received a notice at all is ...I felt like extending a courtesy to her in sending her that notice..."

Vol.4, p.724, L.8-13:"...good news for Mrs. T... is we've withdrew our Motion to Amend our Complaint, So we're sitting here, ...arguing about whether she got notice on a motion that we've withdrawn. That's why I say it's pointless..."

Vol.4, p.725, L.11-12: "THE COURT: The court should have sent notice out to both parties."

Vol.4, p.725, L.17-19: "THE COURT: I would indicate that at the hearing on the 9th, Mr. S... withdrew the request for amendment, so it's not pending."

Vol.4, p.725, L.22-24: "THE COURT ... So if that's the case, if there's no motion pending for a Motion to Amend the Complaint, what is pending right now before the Court?

Vol.4, p.725, L.25: "MS. T...: All I know is that we currently have under appeal on this case and then—"

Vol.4, p.729, L.2-3: "THE COURT: I understand that...what is pending before this Court?"

Vol.4, p.726, L.4-5: "MS. T....: With regards to 08-359, I know of nothing else at this time."

Vol.4, p.726, L.11-19: "...THE COURT: All right. So there's no question, Mr. S..., would you just simply prepare an order for the Court indicating that you have withdrawn your

Motion to Amend and request the Court enter its order accordingly so there's no question at all as to that....There shouldn't be anything else hanging out there."

Vol.4, p.726, L.20: "MS. T...: I know nothing else."

Vol.4, p.726, L.21: "MR. S...: That's correct."

The court issued a bench order to "Mr. S..." legal counsel for the (**Respondents**) "Final R. Vol.4, p.726, L.11-15" quoting: "THE COURT: All Right. So there's no question, Mr. S..., would you just simply prepare an order for the Court indicating that you have withdrawn your Motion to Amend and request the Court enter its order accordingly so there's no question at all as to that."

The resulting order (recapped herein) entered on March 11, 2009 (*Final R. Vol.4, p.730-731*) is blatantly in contempt of the court's bench order, as well as the court, knowing it lacked any alleged jurisdiction, failed to reverse the fraudulent orders issued under the February 9, 2009 hearing, allegedly to hear a motion to amend, but rendering decisions on (untimely and unnoticed) fees and cost, as well as, (unnoticed and lack of any jurisdiction) for slander of title and subsequently, on March 11, 2009, dismissing the case in full while the case was under the Idaho Supreme Court's jurisdiction.

As previously stated, personally knowing the integrity of the judge, for over twenty seven (27) years, if the judge had knowledge of the wording in the February 9, 2009 orders, granting

fees/costs and slander of title, the court knowing there was a violation to jurisdiction and due process, he would have had the (**Respondents**) legal counsel also include in the March 9, 2009 bench order, to reverse the two (2) orders issued on February 9, 2009.

Quoting the signed order: "THIS CAUSE having come before the Court on Defendant's Objection and Motion Scheduled and Heard on February 9, 2009, and M...T... appearing in person, and B...T... not appearing, and the Plaintiffs appearing by and through their attorney, L..J..S.. of the firm B...S...C, and the parties having both represented to the Court that there are no additional claims pending, and M...T...representing that she has filed an appeal to the Idaho Supreme Court on this Court's judgment quieting title; and good cause appearing;

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED AND DECREED that the Court has now adjudicated all of the claims, rights and liabilities of the parties in this case and no additional matters are pending.

Dated this 10 day of March, 2009. (Final R. Vol.1, p.275-276)

The court and legal counsel for the (**Respondents**) acknowledge at the March 9, 2009 hearing, the court nor the (**Respondents**) made any timely notice to the (**Appellants**) for the February 9, 2009 hearing, but acknowledge an appeal had been filed, in which the district court lost jurisdiction to quiet title, yet dismissed the case, making those orders void as well as the order issued granting (untimely) attorney fees and costs, as well as, granting full immunity to all the (**Respondents**) from any liabilities, including the court and the legal counsel, all void due to violation of (**Appellants**) constitutional rights of due process when:

- 1.) The lacked subject matter jurisdiction voids all orders, memorandums and decisions (*Final R. Vol.5, p.958-960*);
- 2.) The memorandum for fees and costs were filed after the fourteen (14) day time limit had expired (*Final R. Vol.5, p.1130, L.21-25; p.1131, L.1-7*) the (**Appellants**) first appeal included any pending motion for fees and costs and Idaho Supreme Court entered its ruling on the fees and cost; (*Final R. Vol.3, p.473*)
 - 3.) No notice of hearing was served on the fraudulent fees and costs;
- 4.) The court severely abused its discretion when it had intrinsic and extrinsic knowledge it lacked subject matter jurisdiction, the memorandum for fees and costs were filed after the fourteen (14) day time limit, the (**Appellants**) filed their appeal, including the alleged fees and costs, the court had intrinsic and extrinsic knowledge it based its decision off forged and altered documents submitted under the sworn affidavit of the legal counsel and not his clients, as well as, granted fees and costs, and a discharge from any and all liability.

In the court's records **I.R.C.P. Rule 60(b)** a new document surfaces for the very first time in these appeal records (*Final R. Vol.2, p.235-237*). A January 20, 2009 "Amended Notice of Hearing...Plaintiffs' Motion to Amend Complaint" surfaces, alleging, the (**Respondents**) were clairvoyant, and that the January 26, 2009 hearing, we all arrived at, except the judge, was never going to take place and it had been rescheduled 6 days before the January 26, 2009 hearing was

9, 2009 hearing (*Final R. Vol.2*, *p.235-237*) and not for fees and costs or slander of title, but for a motion to shorten time to the January 26, 2009 at 10:00 a.m. (*Final R. Vol.2*, *p.237*)).

In the March 9, 2009 transcript (*Final R. Vol. 4, p.718-729*), the judge and the (**Respondents**) are silent on any alleged notice being filed on January 20, 2009 for a new "amended" hearing set for February 9, 2009.

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