Uldaho Law **Digital Commons** @ **Uldaho Law**

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

10-3-2012

Bagley v. Thomason Respondent's Brief Dckt. 39069

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

IV. ARGUMENT

After spending nearly 37 pages of their brief on the factual history of the case, the Thomasons argue only four separate issues on appeal. All of the issues identified by the Thomasons were previously briefed, argued, and rejected by the Court in both *Bagley I* and *Bagley II*. The Thomasons do not identify a single error by the district court in the proceedings

following the Supreme Court's decisions in the prior appeals. The Thomasons are simply inviting the Court to revisit its prior decisions on appeal. The Court should decline to do so.

Additionally, and as noted in the prior appellate briefing, the Thomasons appear *pro se*. Litigants *pro se* are "held to the same standards and rules as those represented by attorneys." *Huff v. Singleton*, 143 Idaho 498, 500, 148 P.3d 1244, 1246 (2006). "Idaho Appellate Rule 35 requires parties to list and argue issues presented on appeal." (*Id*). "When issues presented on appeal are not supported by propositions of law, citation to legal authority, or argument they will not be considered by [the] Court." (*Id*). (citing *Langley v. State*, 126 Idaho 781, 784, 890 P.2d 732, 735 (1995)).

Appellate briefing is meant to be understood in order that the writer might persuade. Liponis v. Bach, 149 Idaho 372, 374, 234 P.3d 696, 698 (2010); City of Kansas City, Inc. v. Hayward, 954 S.W.2d 399, 401 (Mo. Ct. App. 1997). The Thomasons have briefed this case in a manner that is entirely incoherent and disconnected from the issues raised in the post-remand proceedings. Their briefing is "obscure and esoteric." (See id). The Thomasons' briefing is rife with pseudo-legalese, rhetoric, and legal citations. The Court should not consider the Thomasons' arguments because they lack "coherence, citation to applicable authority, citations to the record, or comprehensible argument." See Bach v. Bagley, 229 P.3d 1146 (Idaho 2010).

A. The district court did not err in its orders.

1. Standard of Review.

Where a case is decided on a motion for judgment on the pleadings, for the purposes of appeal, the Court should accept the truth of appellants' allegations. See, e.g., Jones v. St. Maries,

727 P.2d 1161, 1162 (Idaho 1986) (citing *Davenport v. Burke*, 27 Idaho 464, 473, 149 P. 511, 515 (1915)). A motion for judgment on the pleadings under I.R.C.P. 12(c) is identical to the federal rule of the same number. The motion for judgment on the pleadings is also treated in the same way as a motion made under Rule 12(b)(6). *Tomlinson v. El Paso Corp.*, 653 F.3d 1281, 1285-86 (10th Cir. 2011). The standard of review for dismissal under 12(b)(6) is the same as the standard of review for a summary judgment. *Idaho Schs. For Equal Educ. Opportunity v. Evans*, 123 Idaho 573, 578, 850 P.2d 724, 728 (1993). Summary judgment is reviewed de novo. *Stonebrook Constr., LLC v. Chase Home Fin., LLC*, 277 P.3d 374, 376 (Idaho 2012).

2. The district court possessed subject matter jurisdiction.

In *Bagley II*, the Court expressly decided the subject matter jurisdiction issue. The Court noted, "Thomasons have not shown that the district court lacked jurisdiction." *Bagley II*, 149 Idaho at 808, 241 P.3d at 981. The same is true in this appeal. The Thomasons have not explained or demonstrated that the district court lacked the subject matter jurisdiction to adjudicate real property disputes. The Thomasons raise no new issues in this appeal. The sole basis for their argument that the district court lacked jurisdiction is Idaho Code § 55-601, which the Court also rejected as a grounds for standing and, impliedly, subject matter jurisdiction. *Bagley I*, 149 Idaho at 802, 241 P.3d at 975.

Subject matter jurisdiction is the power to determine cases over a general type or class of dispute. *Bach v. Miller*, 144 Idaho 142, 145, 158 P.3d 305, 308 (2007) (citing *Boughton v. Price*, 70 Idaho 243, 249, 215 P.2d 286, 289 (1950). As noted in *Bach*, "Article V, § 20 of the Idaho Constitution provides that the district court shall have original jurisdiction to hear all cases, both

at law and in equity." (*Id*). There can be no dispute that the district court possessed proper authority and jurisdiction to resolve a quiet title dispute pertaining to real property located within Idaho.

The district court had subject matter jurisdiction because Idaho Code §§ 6-401 & 418 authorize district courts to hear actions to quiet title and to regain possession of real property.

See IDAHO CODE ANN. §§ 6-401, 418 (2012). Thus, the district court possessed subject matter jurisdiction to issue all of the findings, orders, and judgments in this case.

Additionally, this Court has already dealt with the arguments raised by the Thomasons about § 55-601. The Court found that the Thomasons failed to raise the issue of compliance with § 55-601 before the district court when the district court quieted title in the Bagleys. *Bagley I*, 149 Idaho at 802, 241 P.3d at 975. Because the Thomasons did not properly raise or preserve the § 55-601 issue before the district court and during the first appeal, they should not be permitted to raise it during this subsequent appeal. The Idaho Court of Appeals explained this principle in *Capps v. Wood*, 117 Idaho 614, 790 P.2d 395 (Ct. App. 1990). The Court stated:

[U]nder the "law of the case" principle, on a second or subsequent appeal the courts generally will not consider errors which arose prior to the first appeal and which might have been raised as issues in the earlier appeal. This approach discourages piecemeal appeals and is consistent with the broad scope of claim preclusion under the analogous doctrine of res judicata.

Id., 117 Idaho at 618, 790 P.2d at 399. *See also Jarman v. Hale*, 122 Idaho 952, 956, 842 P.2d 288, 292 (Ct. App. 1992).

3. The Bagleys possess standing to bring the underlying lawsuit.

This Court previously found that the Bagleys had standing to bring the quiet title action. Bagley I, 149 Idaho at 802, 241 P.3d at 975. The Court's findings in Bagley I are binding under the law of the case doctrine. The law of the case doctrine precludes relitigating issues in single cases and any subsequent proceedings after an appeal. See Berkshire Invs., LLC v. Taylor, 278 P.3d 943, 951 (Idaho 2012) (citing Swanson v. Swanson, 134 Idaho 512, 515, 5 P.3d 973, 976 (2000)), "The 'law of the case' doctrine provides that when 'the Supreme Court, in deciding a case presented states in its opinion a principle or rule of law necessary to the decision, such pronouncement becomes the law of the case, and must be adhered to throughout its subsequent progress, both in the trial court and upon subsequent appeal." Spur Prods. Corp. v. Stoel Rives LLP, 153 P.3d 1158, 1162 (Idaho 2007) (citing Swanson, 134 Idaho at 515, 5 P.3d at 976). Thus, the Court's prior ruling on the issue of standing is binding and the Thomasons provide no coherent argument or authority otherwise.

4. The district court did not abuse its discretion.

It is unclear from the Thomasons' briefing "how" the district court abused its discretion. The argument seems to suggest that the district court's refusal to dismiss the action because it lacked subject matter jurisdiction constituted an abuse of discretion. However, as noted, *supra*, the district court had subject matter jurisdiction to adjudicate the case. Idaho's statutes conferred jurisdiction on the district court and this Court held that jurisdiction exists in this case in Bagley I. Thus to the extent the Thomasons' arguments are construed within the context of jurisdiction and standing the arguments have already been addressed and should be rejected.

The Thomasons also do not raise any specific arguments about the attorney fee awards. The Thomasons challenged the interlocutory fee award in prior appeal and this Court rejected their arguments. *Bagley I*, 149 Idaho at 803-04, 241 P.3d at 976-77. In their appellant brief, the Thomasons identify no specific error committed by the district court in reaching any of the attorney fee awards in this case. The appellate courts of the State of Idaho have routinely declined to search an appellate record for unspecified errors. *In Re Clark*, 283 P.3d 96, 103 (Idaho July 6, 2012); *Bach v. Bagley*, 148 Idaho 784, 790, 229 P.3d 1146, 1152 (2010); *Idaho Dep't of Health & Welfare v. Doe*, 150 Idaho 103, 113, 244 P.3d 247, 257 (Ct. App. 2010). Idaho appellate courts require argument and a specific assignment of error under the Idaho Appellate Rules in order for an issue to be preserved and deemed properly brought before the Court. *See Suitts v. Nix*, 141 Idaho 706, 708, 117 P.3d 120, 122 (2005). Whether the district court abused its discretion in awarding the Bagleys fees has not been specifically raised or articulated by the Thomasons in their appellate briefing. Therefore, the Court should decline to hear any argument on the attorney fee issue by the Thomasons.

The Thomasons argue that the district court abused its discretion in failing to weigh conflicting evidence, including the original documents and the reconveyance agreement. However, the Thomasons never explain those documents' relevance to the Bagleys' motion for judgment on the pleadings. The Thomasons offer no rationale, no authority, and no argument that explains why those documents should have been sufficient to overcome the Bagleys' motion for judgment on the pleadings. The Thomasons' arguments focus on the quiet title issue and not the dismissal of the counterclaims. The failure to support of proposition with argument or

authority is fatal to that proposition on appeal. See Hurtado v. Land O'Lakes, Inc., 278 P.3d 415, 420 (Idaho May 29, 2012) (citing Gem State Ins. Co. v. Hutchison, 145 Idaho 10, 16, 175 P.3d 172, 178 (2007)). As a result of the Thomasons' failure to properly raise the issue of judgment on the pleadings to this Court, their appeal should be denied and the Court should find that the district court did not abuse its discretion in granting the Bagleys' judgment on the pleadings.

5. There is no evidence of fraud.

The Thomasons never presented the district court with any evidence of fraud by the Bagleys, Bagleys' counsel, or any other individual or entity involved in this case. The Thomasons' claims of fraud are spurious. The Thomasons raised the issue of fraud in *Bagley I* and *Bagley II*. These issues, having previously been raised, are not properly before the Court. There was no explanation ever offered to the district court by the Thomasons how or why the Bagleys were engaging in fraud upon the district court in connection with the request for judgment on the pleadings. The district court's findings that there was an absence of evidence of fraudulent conduct and that the claims by the Thomasons were meritless have not been properly preserved or challenged on appeal. The Court should deny the Thomasons' appeal to the extent that they seek relief based upon fraudulent conduct.

6. The Thomasons' Equal Protection argument fails.

The Thomasons make conclusory statements that they were somehow denied equal protection under the laws of the United States of America. However, as with all other positions taken by the Thomasons on appeal, the Thomasons utterly failed to support their conclusory statements with authority or argument. They cite some cases for generic legal propositions as

opposed to anything remotely applicable to this case. The Thomasons have not identified that they are members of a suspect or quasi-suspect class. They have not shown that the laws of which they complain violate the principles of equal protection or that they have any discriminatory impact on the Thomasons. The Thomasons had access to the courts, appeared in those courts, and have presented arguments. They have not been deprived of any equal protection under the laws of the United States of America.

The Thomasons' only argument that remotely supports their conclusory statements about equal protection is that the district court violated equal protection by "not dismissing the [Bagleys'] case and voiding any and all relief to the [Bagleys]." (Appellant Br. at 42). However, this asserted error does not rise to the level of violating equal protection. In fact, after the case was remanded the Thomasons never requested dismissal of the Bagleys' lawsuit. The Thomasons objected to the Bagleys' motions, it is true; however, they never affirmatively requested that the district court dismiss the quiet title action. And even if they had made such a request, the Thomasons do not present the Court with any authority remotely suggesting that the failure to dismiss a case violates equal protection. Equal protection is designed to prevent discrimination in the nations' laws. The Thomasons never raise any argument or authority identifying how the current laws discriminate against the Thomasons in any way. Therefore, the Court should reject the arguments pertaining to equal protection.

B. The Bagleys are entitled to attorney fees under Idaho Code § 12-121.

The Thomasons' appeal is frivolous. There are no fairly debatable issues presented to the Court. The Thomasons focus on issues resolved in the prior appeal and never assign error to the

district court's decision to grant the Bagleys' motion for judgment on the pleadings and enter a final judgment. The Thomasons failure to articulate any justifiable basis for the appeal should leave the Court with an abiding belief that the appeal is frivolous, lacks merit, and is intended solely to harass the Bagleys.

Idaho Code § 12-121 provides:

In any civil action, the judge may award reasonable attorney's fees to the prevailing party or parties, provided that this section shall not alter, repeal or amend any statute which otherwise provides for the award of attorney's fees. The term "party" or "parties" is defined to include any person, partnership, corporation, association, private organization, the state of Idaho or political subdivision thereof.

IDAHO CODE ANN. § 12-121 (2012). The Court has previously held that under § 12-121, a party is entitled to attorney's fees "if the appeal was brought or defended frivolously, unreasonably, and without foundation." *Kelley v. Yadon*, 150 Idaho 334, 338, 247 P.3d 199, 203 (2011) (citing *Crowley v. Critchfield*, 145 Idaho 509, 514, 181 P.3d 435, 440 (2007)). The Court has stated that attorney fees on appeal are awarded under this statute when the Court is "left with an abiding belief that the appeal was brought, pursued, or defended frivolously, unreasonably, or without foundation." *Schmechel v. Dillé*, 148 Idaho 176, 188, 219 P.3d 1192, 1204 (2009) (citing *Burns v. Baldwin*, 138 Idaho 480, 487, 65 P.3d 502, 509 (2003)). Further, the party seeking fees must "support the claim with argument as well as authority." *Evans v. Sayler*, 151 Idaho 223, 228, 254 P.3d 1219, 1224 (2011) (citing *Crump v. Bromley*, 148 Idaho 172, 176, 219 P.3d 1188, 1192 (2009)). Thus, a prevailing party that properly supports its request with both authority and argument may be awarded attorney fees when the appeal is frivolous, unreasonable, or without foundation.

Here, the Bagleys prevailed in all of the proceedings before the district court. They acquired

all of the relief that they sought from the district court. The Thomasons received no relief and their counterclaims were all dismissed. The Thomasons have not supported their appeal with any coherent arguments or authority that would tend to suggest a legitimate basis for the appeal. In the absence of authority or argument, the Court should be left with an abiding belief in the frivolity of the Thomasons' appeal. The Court should, therefore, rule in the Bagleys' favor and deny all of the relief sought on appeal by the Thomasons. In the even that the Court rules in the Bagleys' favor, it should award the Bagleys' their attorney fees based on § 12-121.

Section 12-121 is specifically designed to compensate parties who are dragged into the legal process by another party where there is no fair or reasonable dispute. This appeal is just such a case where this Court has already resolved the issues being argued by the Thomasons. Asking this Court to "second guess" the decision of the lower court without more justifies an award of attorney fees under § 12-121. That is precisely what the Thomasons are asking this Court to do along with revisiting the Court's prior decisions in *Bagley I & II*. "Normally, this Court will award attorney fees pursuant to I.C. § 12-121 if the appeal merely invites the Court to reweigh the evidence or second guess the lower court, or if the appeal was brought or defended frivolously, unreasonably, or without foundation." *Ketterling v. Burger King Corp.*, 272 P.3d 527, 534 (Idaho 2012). The Thomasons appeal is frivolous and attorney fees should be awarded to the Bagleys based on Idaho Code § 12-121.

V. CONCLUSION

The district court's orders should be affirmed. The Bagleys should be awarded their attorney fees and costs on appeal.